
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: August 5, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 8/10/2021 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

Public Comments – During one of the Public Comment periods or at another time granted by the 
Council, Superintendent Paul Smith has been asked to give an update on the plans for the return to 
school at the end of this month, especially as those plans relate to COVID protocols including masking. 

5 Presentations - Chairman of the Town Facilities Building Committee, Glenn Gollenberg, will 
present a final report to the Town Council regarding construction of the Town Hall facility at 1 
Community Drive.  At its last  meeting on July 22, the Committee approved the final payment to the 
contractor and accepted the building as complete.  In total, project expenditures will be about 
$18,935,000, which is approximately $46,000 below the approved budget.  A final accounting will be 
presented at the meeting. 

6 Bids and Contracts 
6a Contract for High School Athletic Facility Improvement Project – The Council is asked to review 
and approve the award and execution of a contract for the High School Athletic Facility Improvement 
Project, which provides for replacement of the tennis courts and track and for improvements to the 
baseball outfield and portions of the soccer field.  As the Council will recall, the scope of the High School 
reconstruction project was revised by the Town Meeting to specifically provide for this work and to 
allow it to be funded within the previously-approved amount for the main high school project.  In 
response to the Request for Proposals, which was issued in late June, the Town received four proposals 
for the work.  Proposals ranged from a high of $1,452,810 to a low of $1,094,750, not including any 
alternates or additions.  The proposals were reviewed by the High School Athletic Fields Building 
Committee and the Town’s consulting engineer and at its meeting on July 29, the Committee 
recommended Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc. of Chicopee, Massachusetts conditioned on 
final review by the engineer.  As the material included in the packet provides, the contract is 
recommended in the amount of $1,094,750 with Mountain View, based on final review of the Town’s 
consulting engineer. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 8/10/2021 
August 5, 2021 
Page 2 

Recommended Action: Approve award of a contract to Mountain Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc. 
of Chicopee, Massachusetts in the amount of $1,094,750 for the High School Athletic Facility 
Improvement Project. 

8 Continued Business 
8a Sub-Committee Reports and Updates 
 The Water System subcommittee has met with three potential engineering firms based on five

responses received to the Request for Qualifications that was issued in late June.  Two of the
companies will be further vetted and the Committee is expected to bring a recommended firm
and initial scope of service to the Council in September.

 The ARP Funding subcommittee is anticipating a first meeting in late August at which it will
begin to review proposed uses of the funds the Town will receive under the American Rescue
Plan.

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 7/27/2021 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 

Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson (via Zoom), Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager 

David Cox 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 

via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Reich, to adopt the agenda as presented. Voted 

(7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Special Meeting/Executive Session and Regular Meeting of July 13, 2021 as written.  

Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

None  

Bids & Contracts 

None   

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

Resolution for the Application for Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Grant 

Program for the Senior Center 

The Senior Center prepared a grant document to replace the Senior Center bus.  The grant is in the 

estimated amount of $74,160 through the State’s Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 

with Disabilities Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Grant Program. The grant is 100% 

funded with no local match required. 

A motion was made by Mr. Philhower, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the resolution 

authorizing the grant application as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

Continued Business 

Sub-Committee Reports & Updates 

Water Sub-Committee – Mr. Johnson reported that the Water Sub-Committee received 5 RFQ 

responses and will be interviewing 3 of the firms. 

Agenda Item 3a



 

Town Council Regular Meeting  2 7/27/2021 Minutes  

 

High School Athletic Fields Committee – Mr. Reich reported that the RFP responses are due in on 

Wednesday and the committee will meet on Thursday.  They are hoping to begin work in September. 

 

New Business 

Review & Possible Approval of Police Department General Orders 

1. General Order 3.2 Conducted Electrical Control Weapon 

2. General Order 6.7 Sexual Assault Investigations 

 

Police Chief Dennis Woessner provided an overview of General Orders 3.2 Conducted Electrical 

Control Weapon and 6.7 Sexual Assault Investigations and answered questions from the Council.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve Police Department 

General Order 3.2 Conducted Electrical Control Weapon and General Order 6.7 Sexual Assault 

Investigations with a correction to the header on General Order 3.2.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Review & Possible Approval of Commission on Aging Survey 

Commission on Aging member Eric Rosenberg and Chairman Bob Atherton presented the proposed 

Commission on Aging survey.  The questions on the survey relate to Housing, Transportation and 

Health Care.  Mr. Markham asked if there are any questions related to COVID.    They will look 

into adding questions related to COVID. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to approve the Commission on Aging 

Survey.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of his written report which will be included with the minutes filed 

in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

 

Mr. Cox noted that the town has returned to a yellow alert status for COVID. 

 

The swimming area at Sears Park was closed but has now reopened.  There will be two BioBlast 

treatments.  The toxicity level of the algae bloom is low. 

 

The Land Use Department intern will be doing a Village Center workshop on August 3. 

 

Appointments 

None 

 

Tax Refunds 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Markham, to approve tax refunds in the amount 

of $1,638.89.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Public Remarks 

Sue Greeno, Stonegate Road, asked about paving plans for the roads near her home.   

 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement  

Mr. Philhower asked about algae levels this year compared to last year. 

 



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 7/27/2021 Minutes 

Ms. Moore read a letter that will be sent to Scott Bristol from the Brownfields Redevelopment 

Agency thanking him for his 14 years of service as he has stepped down from the agency. 

Mr. Markham reminded everyone of the Goff House Concert on Thursday, July 29th at the gazebo. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 7:35pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



SLR International Corporation, 99 Realty Drive, Cheshire, CT 06410   
203 271 1773            slrconsulting.com 

August 3, 2021 

Mr. Jeremy Hall, Director 
East Hampton Parks & Recreation 
1 Community Drive 
East Hampton, CT  06424 

Re: East Hampton High School 
Athletic Facility Improvements 
15 North Maple Street  
East Hampton, Connecticut 
SLR #12999.00003.0170 

Dear Mr. Hall, 

SLR International Corporation (SLR) has completed its evaluation of the bids submitted for the East 
Hampton High School Athletic Facility Improvements. Bids were received from Mountain View 
Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc., the apparent lowest bidder; Colossale Concrete, Inc.; H.I. Stone & Son, Inc.; 
and R.A.D. Sports. 

All bidding companies were responsive to the bid submission requirements. 

The total base bid amounts were as follows: 

Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc. ........................................................... $1,094,750.00 
H.I. Stone & Son, Inc. ................................................................................................. $1,262,000.00 
R.A.D. Sports. ............................................................................................................. $1,337,860.00 
Colossale Concrete, Inc. ............................................................................................. $1,452,810.00 

The bid submitted by Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc., is approximately 10% greater than the 
preliminary engineer's opinion of probable construction costs. All bids received ranged from 
approximately 10% to 45% greater than the preliminary engineer's opinion of probable construction costs. 

General observations include the following: 

• All bids submitted were above the engineer's estimate, which at least some of the escalation can
be attributed to the current state of the construction and material supply industries. Asphalt
tennis courts and the irrigation improvements for the baseball field were the two significant
outliers.

Agenda Item 6a



August 3, 2021 
Mr. Jeremy Hall 
Page 2 

SLR International Corporation     slrconsulting.com 

• Bid Alternate pricing for fencing and runway reconstruction was very close between all bidders.
However, the Bid Alternate pricing for post-tensioned concrete tennis courts and irrigation well
varied significantly.

SLR conducted a scope review with representatives from Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc., 
and feels confident that they understand the project scope and have adequately accounted for all 
proposed improvements.  

SLR has been involved with successful field construction projects with three out of the four bidders. SLR is 
currently working with the apparent low bidder, Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc., on a field 
construction project in Old Lyme, Connecticut, and a tennis court reconstruction project in Chicopee, 
Massachusetts. SLR has designed numerous athletic facility projects that Mountain View Landscapes & 
Lawncare, Inc. has constructed and has always been very pleased with their quality of work and 
professionalism. 

Based upon our review of the bid package, it would be proper for the Town of East Hampton to award the 
project to Mountain View Landscapes & Lawncare, Inc.  

Should you have any questions or need anything further, please feel free to contact us at (203) 271-1773. 

Sincerely, 

SLR International Corporation 

Kevin C. Fuselier, PLA, LEED GA 
Principal Landscape Architect 

13083.00012.au321.ltr.docx 









































































Agenda Item 12



BOARD AND COMMISSION SUMMARY 

JULY 2021 

Arts & Culture Commission 

No meeting 

Board of Finance 

No meeting 

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency 

The Brownfields Redevelopment Agency met on July 26.  Brian Corvo was re-elected Chairperson. 

The members received a report from the Town Manager. The members discussed the updates for 1 

Watrous and 13 Watrous. Chairperson Corvo updated the members on his presentation to the EDC at 

their recent meeting. The members briefly discussed steps for going into their next project and going 

about gaining another grant. 

Clean Energy Task Force 

The Clean Energy Task Force met on July 6.  The members discussed and made some decisions for 

the car show event being held on September 25, with a rain date of September 26. There are a couple 

places in town the car show could be held, but the members thought the High School would be best to 

hold the car show. The members also discussed home energy solutions, solar canopies, heat pumps, 

and income eligible programs to bring into the community. This could spread the awareness of clean 

energy and home energy solutions and bring programs to town. The members want to bring some 

energy solutions and programs to town but may need Town Council approval before any can be set up 

or initialized. 

Commission on Aging 

The Commission on Aging met on July 8 at the Senior Center.  Ms. Ewing reported that travel 

programs are up and running.  The Senior Center is applying for a 5310-transportation grant for a van.  

The Senior Center is participating in the Old Home Days Reverse Parade.  They also discussed their 

survey. 

The Commission on Aging held a special meeting on July 15 to finalize the survey that will be 

presented to the Town Council on July 27. 

Conservation-Lake Commission 

The Conservation-Lake Commission met on July 8.  The members reviewed and discussed two plan 

reviews with motions to obtain narratives for the scope of work for each project. The members 

received an update on the Watershed projects and federal funding. The 319 grant projects are in the 

contract phase with DEEP.  The members discussed the sub-committee report on education, the 

advisory panel, the Lake Smart program, and the lake level. The members want to invite Tom Wells 

to next month’s meeting.  

Design Review Board 

No meeting 

Agenda Item 14a



Economic Development Commission 

The Economic Development Commission met on July 20. The Chairman of the Brownfields 

Redevelopment Agency, Brian Corvo, joined the meeting to present to the commission members about 

the Brownfields Agency. The members discussed the signs promoting the Village Center, the tourism 

pamphlet/ brochure, the final draft of the commission mission statement, the business mixer event, the 

Bells on the Bridge project, the recent Planning and Zoning meeting minutes and motions, the home-

based business regulations workshop, the new business banner, and the Business of the Month. The 

members received a brief report from the Town Manager about the new Land Use department intern 

and the project he is working on for the Village Center. The Town Manager also mentioned that 

Hallmark was filming at the Black Walnut Bakery in the Village Center.  

 

Ethics Commission 

No meeting  

 

Fire Commission 

The Fire Commission met on July 12.  The Fire Marshal and Fire Chief gave an account of their reports 

to the members. The members discussed the new tankers on order and the events and calls that came 

in on 7/6 when the severe thunderstorm passed through. A tanker rolled backwards into a ladder truck 

because it wasn’t properly stabilized.  

 

Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency 

The Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency met on July 28.   

  

Agent Approvals:  

A. IW-21-013: Dream Developers, 1 West Street, Demolish existing two-story deck and construct a 

two-story addition in its place with foundation in the Upland Review Area. Map 03A/ Block 44/ 

Lot 59  

 

Continued Applications:  

A. IW-21-014: Rocco Nozzolini, Construct 572 sq.ft. garage in the Upland Review Area. Map 36/ 

Block 96/ Lot L-3. Approved (5-0)  

B. IW-21-015: Brookhaven Park, Inc, Reclamation of approximately 495 square feet of beach sand 

from Lake Pocotopaug to restore beach area. Brookhaven Beach, Park Road. Map 10A/ Block82/ 

Lot 26A. Approved (5-0)  

C. IW-21-016: East Hampton WPCA. Replacement of Sewer Force Main Between Pine Trail and 

Poe Road on four properties along Lake Pocotopaug Shoreline in Upland Review Area. Approved 

(5-0)  

 

New Applications:  

A. IW-21-017: Martin Scovill, 117 Colchester Ave., 3 Lot Subdivision with wetlands on the north 

side of property. Map 27/Block 87A/Lot 12A-4. Continued (5-0)  

B. IW-21-019: Donald, Nancy, Robert and Sue Briere, 91-93 Lake Dr. and Lake Dr. 03A/70A/58, 2 

lot subdivision in the Upland Review Area Map 25/Block 64/Lot 56 and 4 lot subdivision for 

non-buildable lots at Lake Drive Map 03A/Block 70A/Lot 58 within the Upland Review Area. 

Continued (5-0) 

 

 

 



Joint Facilities  

The Colchester –East Hampton Joint Facilities Board met in person and via Zoom on July 20. The 

Town is in negotiations with Eversource to relocate the power line on the upper section of the Airline 

trail above the Plant.  An energy audit was completed for the Plant.  New energy upgrades will include 

interior and exterior LED lighting in two buildings and parking lot lights. The Plants (3 flat roof 

buildings) roofing project has been completed.  Colchester reported that the bids for the Force Main 

repair were opened on July 16th and are making progress on controlling the odor coming into the 

Village Center.    

 

Library Advisory Board 

The Library Advisory Board met on July 12 at the Library.  Board members received an update on the 

library space planning project.   Ms. Paul informed the Board that the CT State Library has approved 

the Library’s application for ARPA funding.  The Library will use the grant monies to fund a charging 

station and chairs, mobile shelving in the adult reading rotunda and new wireless access points. 

 

Middle Haddam Historic District Commission 

No meeting 

 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

No meeting 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

The Planning & Zoning Commission met on July 7. 

Public Hearings for June 2, 2021: (Use the “Raise Your Hand” feature to speak)  

A. Application PZC-20-024: Paula Free, 249 West High St., for a special permit per Sec. 8.4 Motor 

Fuel Filling Station with a proposed convenience store in the Commercial Zone, Section 5.2. 

Map 06/Block 12/Lot 1B. Continued (7-0)  

B. Updates to East Hampton Zoning Map – Approved (7-0)  

 

New Business: 

A. Application PZC-21-013: Connecticut Water Company, 204 Edgewater Circle, Site Plan Review 

for the Construction of a water treatment facility and associated site improvements. Map 10A/ 

Block 85/ Lot 15. Approved (7-0)  

 

Town Facility Building Committee  

The Town Facility Building Committee met on July 22.  Ms. Motto gave a brief update for the 

Architect/Construction Manager/OPM and the financial side of the project. Two remaining Newfield 

invoices were approved by the members. The members then made a motion to declare the project 

complete and to accept it on behalf of the Town of East Hampton.  

 

Water Pollution Control Authority  

No meeting 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

No meeting 


	Mountainview Response.pdf
	20210805123447634
	20210805123510846




